
PLANNING COMMISSION         DECEMBER 11, 2025             PAGE  30 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE HYRUM CITY PLANNING COMMISSION 

HELD DECEMBER 11, 2025 AT THE HYRUM CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 60 WEST 

MAIN, HYRUM, UTAH. 

  

CONVENED: 6:30 P.M. 

 

CONDUCTING: Chairman Stephen Nelson 

 

PRESENT: Chairman Stephen Nelson, Commissioners Scott Casas, and 

Averie Wheeler. 

 

CALL TO ORDER: There being three present and three representing a 

quorum, Chairman Stephen Nelson called the meeting to order.  

 

OTHERS PRESENT: City Planner Tony Ekins, City Engineer Matt Holmes 

and seven citizens. Secretary Shara Toone recorded the minutes.  

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Commissioner Casas led the governing body 

and the citizens in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

INVOCATION: Chairman Nelson 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

 

The minutes of a regular meeting held on November 13, 2025 were 

approved as written.  

 

 

ACTION Commissioner Wheeler made a motion to approve the 

minutes of November 13, 2025 as written. Commissioner 

Casas seconded the motion and Commissioners Casas, 

Nelson, Wheeler, and voted aye. 

 

 

AGENDA APPROVAL: 

 

A copy of the notice and agenda for this meeting was posted on the 

Utah Public Notice Website and Hyrum City’s website, distributed 

to each member of the Planning Commission, and posted at the City 

Offices more than forty-eight hours before meeting time. 

 

 

ACTION Commissioner Casas made a motion to approve the agenda 

for December 11, 2025, as written. Commissioner Wheeler 

seconded the motion and Commissioners Casas, Nelson, 

Wheeler, and voted aye.  

 



PLANNING COMMISSION         DECEMBER 11, 2025             PAGE  31 

  

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. To receive public comment regarding an ordinance 

amending Title 17 Zoning of the Hyrum City Municipal 

Code 17.04.070 Definitions to establish a maximum front 

yard setback for a dwelling unit and clarify innerblock 

development may be permitted through an approved Planned 

Unit Development. Application #25-043 

B. To receive public comment regarding amending the Hyrum 

City General Plan to include Chapter 10, Hyrum City Water 

Use and Preservation. 

7.  SCHEDULED DELEGATIONS 

A. Hyrum City, Ordinance Amendment – Seeking recommendation 

to the City Council of an ordinance amending Title 17 

Zoning of the Hyrum City Municipal Code 17.04.070 

Definitions to establish a maximum front yard setback 

for a dwelling unit and clarify innerblock development 

may be permitted through an approved Planned Unit 

Development. Application#25-043 

B. Hyrum City, General Plan Amendment – Seeking 

recommendation to the City Council of amending the Hyrum 

City General Plan to include Chapter 10, Hyrum City Water 

Use and Preservation. #25-047 

C. Hyrum City, Ordinance Amendment – Seeking recommendation 

to the City Council of an ordinance amending Title 17 

Zoning of the Hyrum City Municipal Code to create Chapter 

17.62 Short-term Rental; and amend Use Regulations in 

sections 17.28.010, 17.44.020, and 17.45.020 to include 

Short-term Rental as a conditional use in the 

Residential Zones R-1 and R-2, Commercial zones C-1 and 

C-2. Application #25-037. 

D. Scott Johnson, Accessory Building – To seek approval for 

a 20’x8’(160 sq.ft.) storage pod/ container as an 

accessory building located at 1394 East 150 South. 

Application #25-048. 

E. Bryan Jorgensen, Kilgore Companies – To seek site plan 

approval for a previously constructed weir system and 

wastewater discharge located at 410 North 800 East. 

Application #25-026.  

8.  ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 



PLANNING COMMISSION         DECEMBER 11, 2025             PAGE  32 

 

HYRUM CITY, ORDINANCE AMENDMENT- TO RECEIVE PUBLIC COMMENT 

REGARDING AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 17 ZONING OF THE HYRUM CITY 

MUNICIPAL CODE 17.04.070 DEFINITIONS TO ESTABLISH A MAXIMUM FRONT 

YARD SETBACK FOR A DWELLING UNIT AND CLARIFY INNERBLOCK DEVELOPMENT 

MAY BE PERMITTED THROUGH AN APPROVED PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT. 

APPLICATION. #25-043.  

 

City Planner Ekins explained that the item is a clarification of 

the definition of inner block development. He gave background on 

Hyrum’s original 660-foot blocks, which were designed with homes 

along the streets and open space in the middle for animals, 

gardens, and other residential uses. The city has long used this 

definition to preserve that original intent.  

 

Ekins noted that development in the interior of blocks is allowed 

only in specific cases, such as approved planned unit developments 

or in the R-2A zone. The clarification addresses situations where 

large front and rear setbacks effectively place a home in the 

middle of a block, which staff believes goes against the original 

intent.  

 

The updated definition states that any dwelling set back more than 

twice the required front yard setback is considered inner block 

development. This is meant to improve clarity and prevent single-

family homes from being placed in the middle of blocks. 

 

Ekins explained that homes built in the interior of blocks impact 

the entire block with light, noise, activity, and traffic. Staff 

presented this clarification to help preserve the original rural 

feel envisioned for these blocks. 

 

 

ACTION Commissioner Wheeler made a motion to open the public 

hearing at 6:39 P.M. Commissioner Casas seconded the 

motion and commissioners Casas, Nelson, and Wheeler 

voted aye. 

 

 

Chairman Nelson said if there were any members of the public that 

would like to speak to come up and state their name and address 

for the record.  

 

Steve Miller, who lives at 6263 South 600 West, spoke in 

support of the amendment. He said it was well studied, 

protects inner blocks, and helps keep development out of 

people’s backyards. He said he believes it follows the intent 



PLANNING COMMISSION         DECEMBER 11, 2025             PAGE  33 

of the forefathers and strongly supports the amendment. 

 

ACTION Commissioner Casas made a motion to close the public 

hearing at 6:45 P.M. Commissioner Wheeler seconded the 

motion and commissioners Casas, Nelson, and Wheeler 

voted aye. 

 

HYRUM CITY, GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT – TO RECEIVE PUBLIC COMMENT 

REGARDING AMENDING THE HYRUM CITY GENERAL PLAN TO INCLUDE CHAPTER 

10, HYRUM CITY WATER USE AND PRESERVATION. APPLICATION #25. 

 

City Planner Ekins explained that the city is updating its general 

plan, and the State of Utah requires a water-use and preservation 

element to be added by January 2026. A consultant was hired to 

prepare this update and began work around August, including an 

open house. 

 

The consultant drafted the water use and preservation element to 

be added as a new chapter in the current general plan. This element 

is being developed alongside the rest of the general plan update 

and may have minor changes later. 

 

Ekins said the consultant could not attend the meeting due to a 

scheduling conflict with the steering committee but could give a 

presentation in January. He stated that staff have reviewed 

multiple drafts and he is confident the document is accurate and 

ready to be included at this time. 

 

ACTION Commissioner Wheeler made a motion to open the public 

hearing at 6:45 P.M. Commissioner Casas seconded the 

motion and commissioners Casas, Nelson, and Wheeler 

voted aye. 

 

Chairman Nelson invited any members of the public who wanted to 

speak on the water use element to come forward and comment. 

 

ACTION Commissioner Casas made a motion to close the public 

hearing at 6:45 P.M. Commissioner Wheeler seconded the 

motion and commissioners Casas, Nelson, and Wheeler 

voted aye. 

 

 

SCHEDULED DELEGATIONS: 

 

HYRUM CITY, ORDINANCE AMENDMENT – SEEKING RECOMMENDATION TO THE 

CITY COUNCIL OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 17 ZONING  OF THE HYRUM 

CITY MUNICIPAL CODE 17.04.070 DEFINITIONS TO ESTABLISH A MAXIMUM 



PLANNING COMMISSION         DECEMBER 11, 2025             PAGE  34 

FRONT YARD SETBACK FOR A DWELLING UNIT AND CLARIFY INNERBLOCK 

DEVELOPMENT MAY BE PERMITTED THROUGH AN APPROVED PLANNED UNIT 

DEVELOPMENT. APPLICATION #25-043. 

 

City Planner Ekins said that based on his experience since January, 

the definition amendment will help clearly communicate goals in 

the code. He explained that allowing a setback of up to 50 feet, 

instead of just 25 feet, is reasonable and helps define where the 

front of a home should begin for future applications. 

 

Commissioner Wheeler said the clarification makes sense and that 

she supports it. 

 

 

ACTION Commissioner Wheeler made a motion to recommend 

approval of an ordinance amending Title 17 Zoning of the 

Hyrum City Municipal Code 17.04.070 Definitions to 

establish a maximum front yard setback for a dwelling 

unit and clarify innerblock development may be permitted 

through an approved planned unit development. 

Application #25-043. Commissioner Casas seconded and 

commissioners Casas, Nelson, and Wheeler voted aye. 

 

 

HYRUM CITY, GENERAL PLAN – SEEKING RECOMMENDATION TO THE CITY 

COUNCIL OF AMENDING THE HYRUM CITY GENERAL PLAN TO INCLUDE CHAPTER 

10, HYRUM CITY WATER USE AND PRESERVATION. APPLICATION #25-047.  

 

City Planner Ekins clarified that the changes in the table of 

contents are only to create Chapter 10 to fit on those pages. He 

explained that staff reviewed drafts with the consultant, provided 

comments, and received responses. He also said the water department 

worked closely with the consultant on the sections about water 

demand, infrastructure, and the purpose of the chapter to make 

sure the information was accurate. 

 

Chairman Nelson asked about the city’s current landscaping 

standards for commercial, industrial, and multi-family 

developments. 

 

City Planner Ekins explained that currently, multi-family Planned 

Unit Developments are required to have 50% open space, but there 

are few landscaping restrictions for site plan applications. He 

noted that some recent developments, like in the industrial park, 

have used water-wise xeriscape designs with minimal shrubs and 

lots of rock, which works well for those areas. He said future 

updates to the landscaping requirements could focus on reducing 



PLANNING COMMISSION         DECEMBER 11, 2025             PAGE  35 

water use, with the water use element serving as a guide. 

 

Chairman Nelson noted that the plan lists methods for reducing 

water demand, including water-wise landscaping, but said updating 

the landscape code is not currently included as an action item. 

 

Commissioner Casas said that by 2050, the city is projected to use 

only about two-thirds of its available water, showing that Hyrum 

City has planned well. He expressed concern that overdoing water-

wise landscaping could make residential areas look barren, unlike 

the green streets and trees valued by the city’s founders. He said 

a balanced approach is needed, with xeriscaping more suitable for 

industrial areas than for residential neighborhoods. 

 

Commissioner Wheeler said the issue with xeriscaping is a lack of 

education, noting that it doesn’t have to mean creating a desert 

and that yards can still be lush and full of plants.  

 

Commissioner Casas agreed that current examples, like a business 

on 800 East, mostly use rock with little greenery, which looks 

like a gravel pit and requires maintenance. 

 

Commissioner Wheeler suggested providing more resources and 

support through programs like the USU extension, Localscaping, and 

pollinator habitat initiatives, along with incentives, to help 

people create attractive, water-efficient landscaping.  

 

Both agreed that education and guidance are key to improving 

xeriscaping in the city. 

 

Chairman Nelson agreed with Commissioner Wheeler’s concerns and 

suggested that the plan should include updating the city’s 

landscape standards for commercial, industrial, and multi-family 

projects. He recommended limiting sod, which is often decorative 

but not water-efficient, and instead promoting trees, shrubs, and 

other landscaping that adds beauty and reduces heat islands. 

 

Commissioner Casas noted that in new developments, many parkways 

are just rock, which often die, reducing landscape value.  

 

Nelson emphasized that trees are more effective than lawns for 

cooling and recommended adding a future action item for the city 

to review and improve landscaping as part of its water preservation 

goals. 

 

Commissioner Wheeler said the priority should be reducing water 

use while improving landscape value.  



PLANNING COMMISSION         DECEMBER 11, 2025             PAGE  36 

 

Chairman Nelson noted that outdoor landscaping affects water use 

more than indoor use because indoor water returns to the system, 

while outdoor water can be lost to evaporation and groundwater 

over long periods.  

 

City Planner Ekins said he fully supports the idea and can work 

with the consultant to add action items, which could then be 

presented back to the commission or taken to the city council.  

 

Chairman Nelson noted the plan was supposed to be approved by the 

end of the month.  

 

Commissioner Wheeler said approval wouldn’t happen before January, 

and Ekins explained there was a scheduling misunderstanding with 

the city council meeting but that the process is moving forward. 

 

Chairman Nelson asked about the city’s secondary water system and 

whether there are plans to create a tiered system like the one 

used for culinary water, noting that secondary water must be 

metered by 2030.  

 

City Engineer Holmes said the tiered system currently only applies 

to culinary water, and while the state does not currently require 

metering of secondary water, metering is planned to ensure future 

developments install the necessary infrastructure.  

 

Commissioner Casas asked staff how new developments are connecting 

to the secondary water system, noting that some homes have it while 

about 500 do not. He asked whether this is due to availability or 

developer choice and whether it could be mandated. 

 

City Engineer Holmes explained that connecting to secondary water 

is not currently required by code but is recommended because it 

preserves culinary water and lowers costs for homeowners. He said 

it could be mandated by updating the code, though there may be 

technical challenges.  

 

City Engineer Holmes added that the city is reviewing water rights 

and usage limits with legal counsel to determine what is possible.  

 

Chairman Nelson shared that his property borders a canal and 

settling ponds but does not have secondary water.  

 

Commissioner Casas noted that many homeowners are unaware if they 

have secondary water and added that secondary water must be 

included in the original infrastructure since it’s difficult to 



PLANNING COMMISSION         DECEMBER 11, 2025             PAGE  37 

add later without major construction.  

 

City Planner Ekins agreed that providing secondary water from the 

start seems reasonable. 

 

Commissioner Wheeler said she likes the priorities that have been 

established. 

 

Chairman Nelson suggested adding an action item under Water Goal 

1. for the city to review and update landscaping standards, 

especially for commercial, industrial, institutional, and multi-

family developments, to better support water-wise landscaping. He 

said the goal should be to reduce water use while still maintaining 

beauty, trees, shade, and the character of the city, rather than 

eliminating landscaping or allowing areas to be fully gravel. 

 

Commissioner Casas agreed and said he wants to avoid new 

developments that use only gravel with few or no plants.  

 

Commissioner Wheeler and staff discussed ensuring water-wise 

landscaping still includes adequate plantings and suggested using 

resources such as planting templates, ground covers, native 

plants, and guidance from water districts and USU.  

 

The commissioners generally agreed that improved landscaping 

standards should balance efficiency, aesthetics, and environmental 

benefits. 

 

Commissioner Casas said he supports approving the item as written 

so it can move forward but wants the planning commission and staff 

to develop better landscaping requirements in the future.  

 

Commissioner Wheeler agreed, noting that the document already 

outlines priorities and encourages the changes discussed. 

 

Chairman Nelson said he supports approval but wants a clear action 

item included that commits the city to addressing landscaping 

through an ordinance.  

 

The commissioners discussed making improved landscaping standards 

a future planning commission goal.  

 

City Planner Ekins said those recommendations could be included 

when the item goes to the city council and noted the element will 

be reviewed again within the year. 

 

Commissioner Casas concluded that while the document is not exactly 



PLANNING COMMISSION         DECEMBER 11, 2025             PAGE  38 

what he wants, deadlines require moving forward now, with the 

expectation that improvements can be made later. 

 

 

ACTION Commissioner Casas made a motion to recommend approval 

of amending the Hyrum City General Plan to include 

Chapter 10, Hyrum City Water and Preservation. 

Application 325-047. Commissioner Wheeler seconded  and 

commissioners Casas, Nelson, and Wheeler voted aye. 

 

 

HYRUM CITY, ORDINANCE AMENDMENT – SEEKING RECOMMENDATION TO THE 

CITY COUNCIL OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 17 ZONING OF THE HYRUM 

CITY MUNICIPAL CODE TO CREATE CHAPTER 17.62 SHORT-TERM RENTAL; 

AMEND 17.04.070 DEFINITIONS TO DEFINE AND INCLUDE “SHORT-TERM 

RENTAL”; AND AMEND USE REGULATIONS IN SECTIONS 17.28.010, 

17.44.020, AND 17.45.020 TO INCLUDE SHORT-TERM RENTAL AS A 

CONDITIONAL USE IN THE RESIDENTIAL ZONES R-1 AND R-2, COMMERCIAL 

ZONES C-1 AND C-2. APPLICATION #25-037.  

 

City Planner Ekins explained that a public hearing on the ordinance 

was opened in November and continued so revisions could be made. 

He said the ordinance draft was reviewed line by line, notes were 

taken, and meeting minutes were used to prepare updated amendments 

to present to the Planning Commission and City Council. 

 

He highlighted key changes in the draft, including a required 

section added at the top and a clarification added by the City 

Attorney defining short-term rentals as stays of fewer than 30 

days. He also explained revisions requiring an operational 

strategy plan for short-term rentals, detailing parking, 

maintenance, garbage, emergency plans, and contact information. 

For owners who do not live in the city, an additional requirement 

for a local property manager and contact information was added. 

 

Chairman Nelson suggested revising the wording in the ordinance to 

make it clearer that the operational strategy plan requirements 

apply to all short-term rental owners, regardless of whether they 

live in the city. He recommended removing language that limits the 

requirements to city residents and instead clearly stating that 

out-of-city owners must also provide a local property manager and 

contact information. 

 

City Planner Ekins discussed how the language could be clarified 

to avoid confusion and agreed with the intent.  

 

Chairman Nelson said the changes would make the section cleaner 



PLANNING COMMISSION         DECEMBER 11, 2025             PAGE  39 

and easier to understand. 

 

They also discussed the purpose of the operational strategy plan, 

including showing guests where to park, outlining emergency exits, 

and explaining trash collection.  

 

Ekins explained that the plan is meant to help guests follow rules 

and ensure properties are safe and well maintained, rather than 

regulating how owners manage their finances. 

 

Chairman Nelson discussed the need for an emergency exit plan to 

be posted inside the short-term rental and questioned whether that 

requirement was clearly stated.  

 

Commissioner Casas agreed and said the plan should be posted in a 

visible place, similar to hotel room exit maps.  

 

City Planner Ekins said the listed items could be posted in the 

rental.  

 

Chairman Nelson then discussed whether the property owner’s or 

property manager’s contact information should be posted, noting 

some owners may have a local manager.  

 

City Engineer Holmes suggested using the term “direct responsible 

charge.”  

 

Commissioner Wheeler noted that many short-term rentals provide 

this information in a binder with house rules, which he felt was 

an appropriate place since guests are expected to review it. 

 

City Planner Ekins explained that short-term rentals would be 

limited to one per 500 people based on Hyrum City’s population as 

estimated by the Utah State Tax Commission. Using an example 

population of 10,849, this would allow 22 STR permits. He said the 

reference to the U.S. Census Bureau was removed after staff met 

with other departments and agreed to use the Utah State Tax 

Commission data to keep population estimates consistent across the 

city. 

 

Chairman Nelson stated that the state has also moved away from 

using census data and is no longer relying on the Census Bureau. 

 

City Planner Ekins explained that the population data is updated 

annually and that several ordinance changes were made. One section 

was struck and clarified regarding where STRs are not allowed near 

single-family residences, with the remaining language renumbered. 



PLANNING COMMISSION         DECEMBER 11, 2025             PAGE  40 

He also noted that STRs are not allowed in attached accessory 

buildings or temporary structures such as tents, yurts, RVs, or 

campers. In the standards section, wording was changed from “will” 

to “shall” for clarity based on the city attorney’s review, and 

STRs were limited to a maximum of two dogs on the property. 

 

Chairman Nelson suggested that the sentence should simply state 

that STRs are limited to two dogs on the premises and that the 

rest of the sentence was unnecessary. 

 

City Planner Ekins reviewed parking requirements, stating that 

parking stalls must be 9 by 20 feet and made of a hard surface, as 

previously agreed. He also discussed fire safety inspections, 

explaining that sprinkler requirements depend on fire code 

standards such as building type, size, occupancy, and use. He said 

STRs in multifamily buildings without required sprinklers would 

not be approved, and that language was added to note sprinklers 

may be required based on applicable fire code mandates. 

 

Commissioner Wheeler said the revisions covered everything that 

had been discussed.  

 

Commissioner Casas said he thought the revisions were good. 

 

Chairman Nelson discussed revising language in the STR standards, 

suggesting that “allow emergency egress” be changed to “provide 

emergency egress” and that the requirement reference applicable 

building or fire codes, for clarity. He also revisited earlier 

discussion about requiring certain items to be posted 

conspicuously within the residence.  

 

Commissioner Casas supported adding posting requirements.  

 

The group discussed whether contact information should be posted 

for someone in direct responsible charge of the property, rather 

than relying on booking agencies, to ensure quick response in 

emergencies.  

 

 

ACTION Commissioner Nelson made a motion to recommend approval 

of an ordinance amending Title 17 Zoning of the Hyrum 

City Municipal Code as presented with the following 

changes:1. Section 17.62 D1, The owner or operator of as 

STR that resides in the city limits shall submit with 

the conditional use permit an operational strategy plan 

that outlines the operation and property management of 

the STR that includes the following 2. Section 17.62 D2 



PLANNING COMMISSION         DECEMBER 11, 2025             PAGE  41 

“In addition the owner or operator of a STR that does 

not live within the city limits shall provide in addition 

to the required operation strategy plan a property 

manager and property manager contact list." 3. Include 

language that says the property owner must post items A-

E and the contact information for the Primary 

Responsible Pary (for emergencies) in the STR. 4. The 

STR shall be limited to two (2) dogs on the premises. 

the number of allowed pets at any one residence.  

Application #25-037. Casas seconded and commissioners 

Casas, Nelson, and Wheeler voted aye. 

 

 

SCOTT JOHNSON, ACCESSORY BUILDING – TO SEEK APPROVAL FOR A 

20’X8’(160 SQ.FT.) STORAGE POD/CONTAINER AS AN ACCESSORY BUILDING 

LOCTED AT 1394 EAST 150 SOUTH. APPLICATION #25-048. 

 

City Planner Ekins explained that the city allows detached 

accessory structures on residential properties for storage or yard 

items, sometimes requiring Planning Commission approval. He said 

that under the current ordinance, a storage pod or container over 

140 square feet requires design review and approval by the Planning 

Commission. He presented an application from Scott Johnson, who 

lives at 1394 East 150 South in Hyrum, to install a 160-square-

foot storage pod in a conforming location in his rear yard. Ekins 

noted that the site plan and photos were included in the 

application and that Scott Johnson was present to speak. 

 

Chairman Nelson invited Scott Johnson to present his project. 

Johnson explained that he and his wife have lived in their home 

for over a decade and had been planning to add a shed in their 

backyard. They chose a new, prefabricated storage container that 

matches their house and is visually appealing. They prepared the 

site by adding gravel as a foundation. Johnson said he only 

realized he needed Planning Commission approval after ordering the 

container because it exceeded the 140-square-foot limit for a 

detached accessory structure.  

 

Commissioner Wheeler asked about trees on Johnson’s property.  

 

Scott Johnson explained that when they bought the spec home in 

2015, most surrounding lots were empty. Their property has two or 

three trees in the park strip and four trees they planted in the 

backyard. 

 

Commissioner Wheeler commented that more trees would make the 

storage container less noticeable.  



PLANNING COMMISSION         DECEMBER 11, 2025             PAGE  42 

 

Scott Johnson replied that he has more trees than most of his 

neighbors. 

 

Chairman Nelson asked about the fence on the property.  

 

Commissioner Casas said there is a six-foot vinyl fence on three 

sides.  

 

Chairman Nelson asked the height of the container, and Scott 

Johnson said it is eight and a half feet.  

 

Commissioner Wheeler commented that the height is not too high. 

 

Scott Johnson said the photo shows the container’s perspective 

well, noting its size is similar to a typical shed.  

 

Commissioner Casas said he visited the property and observed that 

neighbors have larger structures, like campers, without permits, 

and the container is well-placed in the backyard.  

 

Scott Johnson added that his closest neighbor, five feet away, was 

informed and had no concerns.  

 

Commissioner Casas said, after seeing the property and fencing, he 

personally saw no issues. 

 

Commissioner Wheeler said she was okay with the storage container, 

noting it is not as obtrusive as it could be.  

 

Scott Johnson said he is invested in making it look good. He 

explained that they previously rented a storage unit in the 

industrial park and wanted their own space to store items for their 

family instead of paying $100 a month. 

 

Chairman Nelson expressed concerns about the ordinance’s size 

restrictions for storage containers.  

 

Commissioner Wheeler agreed and suggested the rules might need to 

be revised rather than specifying a size that isn’t standard.  

 

Scott Johnson explained that standard containers are usually 20 or 

40 feet long, with smaller sizes being rare or modified.  

 

Commissioner Casas noted that smaller containers are hard to find, 

and Wheeler agreed that the ordinance should be reviewed. 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION         DECEMBER 11, 2025             PAGE  43 

Chairman Nelson noted that as they review the ordinance in the 

future, they might consider loosening the standards, but he was 

concerned about leaving decisions too open-ended without clear 

guidelines to avoid arbitrary decisions.  

 

City Planner Ekins acknowledged the concern and said it wasn’t on 

the agenda for detailed discussion but agreed they would review 

these issues together as they arise in the coming years. 

 

ACTION Commissioner Casas made a motion to approve a 20’x8’ 

(160 sq.ft.) storage pod/container as an accessory 

building located at 1394 East 150 South. Application 

325-048. Commissioner Wheeler seconded and commissioners 

Casas, Nelson, and Wheeler voted aye. 

 

 

BRYAN JORGENSEN, KILGORE COMPANIES – TO SEEK SITE PLAN APPROVAL 

FOR A PREVIOUSLY CONSTRUCTED WEIR SYSTEM AND WASTEWATER DISCHARGE 

LOCATED AT 410 NORTH 800 EAST. APPLICATION #25-026. 

 

City Planner Ekins explained that the applicant was not present 

and provided background on the application, noting it has been on 

the agenda three times. He said a wastewater discharge weir system 

was installed next to a concrete plant, but the exact installation 

date is unknown. City staff had been called to inspect the system 

and informed the property owner that a building permit, site plan 

approval, and discharge information were required. The applicant 

submitted an application but missed a scheduled meeting and then 

lost communication with staff. Ekins said staff needs to consult 

with Administration to determine the next steps. 

 

Commissioner Casas explained that he visited Kilgore Industries 

and spoke with Shane, the architect and developer of their weir 

system. He observed that the system is completely self-contained 

and does not discharge into the city sewer. Wastewater from truck 

washouts goes into holding ponds where sediment settles, and 

filtered water is reused in the concrete process. Casas said the 

system prevents minerals and additives from entering the 

groundwater and was built to meet EPA requirements, not city 

requirements. 

 

City Planner Ekins said he can invite them to come in and explain 

their system, so they can get the matter resolved.  

 

Commissioner Casas said he is comfortable with approving it as is.   

 

Commissioner Wheeler said she doesn’t like that they haven’t been 



PLANNING COMMISSION         DECEMBER 11, 2025             PAGE  44 

communicating. 

 

Chairman Nelson said it seems like the city has a lot of required 

information that has not been provided. He said he doesn’t doubt 

that it meets requirements, but they need to see that information 

to approve it. He added it’s already designed and built according 

to some standard, Kilgore just needs to show staff and planning 

commission that standard.  

 

City Planner Ekins said he cannot support approval because Hyrum 

City ordinance requires proper verification. The weir system has 

not been confirmed to meet building code standards, including 

concrete strength and rebar reinforcement required by the 

International Code Council. City code also requires a site plan 

for structures over 1,000 square feet.  

 

City Engineer Holmes added that the applicant plans to add another 

structure, which together would exceed 1,000 square feet, making 

a site plan and Planning Commission review necessary.  

 

Commissioner Wheeler expressed concern about the applicant’s lack 

of communication and questioned their good faith, and Ekins 

confirmed he had not received any responses. 

 

Commissioner Casas noted that the applicant is using the weir 

system regardless of approval.  

 

City Engineer Holmes said the system was installed in violation of 

state and city law and could have been approved beforehand.  

 

Chairman Nelson said he is willing to work with the applicant to 

help them get approval.  

 

City Planner Ekins explained that he told the applicant the process 

is straightforward: submit an application, work with staff, 

present it to the Planning Commission, and then get the City 

Council’s approval to obtain the permits. 

 

Commissioner Casas said he learned they only use culinary water 

for cement production. He asked if they could use secondary water, 

but the company said contaminants could affect the concrete.  

 

City Planner Ekins noted it’s better since the water doesn’t leave 

the site.  

 

Commissioner Casas noted that there doesn’t seem to be a backflow 

system, since the area is a concrete drainage pit.  



PLANNING COMMISSION         DECEMBER 11, 2025             PAGE  45 

 

Commissioner Wheeler explained that backflow refers to water 

coming into the site.  

 

City Engineer Holmes said the water needs proper backflow 

protection.  

 

Commissioner Casas clarified that the water comes from the trucks 

but agreed that adding water to the trucks would require a backflow 

preventer.  

 

City Engineer Holmes said he remembered the pits from a previous 

visit and recalled the processing machine used to adjust the 

alkalinity. He was unsure whether a hose bib was present at the 

time. 

 

Commissioner Casas said he did not see a hose bib but observed a 

truck washout using water contained in the truck, with runoff 

flowing into the system. He said the applicant may only need to 

show that truck water is used, filled from an approved source with 

proper backflow protection, and that there is no contamination 

risk.  

 

Commissioner Wheeler said the commission does not have enough 

information.  

 

Chairman Nelson asked whether the item should be tabled or denied.  

 

City Planner Ekins explained that either option was available: 

tabling would allow the application to continue if the applicant 

responds, while denial would close the application and require 

starting over.  

 

 

ACTION Commissioner Casas made a motion to table a site plan 

for a previously constructed weir system and wastewater 

discharge located at 410 North 800 East. Application 

#25-026. Commissioner Wheeler seconded and commissioners 

Casas, Nelson, and Wheeler, voted aye. 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION         DECEMBER 11, 2025             PAGE  46 

ACTION There being no further business before the Planning 

Commission, the meeting adjourned at 8:03 p.m. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

     _________________________________ 

         Stephen Nelson 

     Chairman 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Shara Toone 

Secretary 

 

 

Approved: _January 8, 2026_ 

      As Written 


